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The site of Cantonment Reno is in the northeast quadrant of Wyoming, in
Johnson County, and on the west bank of the Powder River about 25 miles
east of the town of Kaycee. Today no structures remain of the cantonment
that was important for a short period of two years during the last quarter
of the nineteenth century. From 1876 to 1878 Cantonment Reno served the
United States Army as a supply post in a campaign to force the Sioux,
Cheyenne, and Arapahoe from their last great hunting grounds. Close to
the eastern foothills of the Big Horn Mountains and on the western fringe
of the Powder River Basin, it was purposely located within those hunting
grounds, along a major north-south line of transportation and communication
called the Bozeman Trail.

Cantonment Reno was established within a deep, eastward loop of the Powder
River, opposite a tributary called the Dry Fork. The post had no stockade
to enclose it, but rather was spread across a wide, slightly elevated,
alluvial terrace. Available nearby was wood for fuel and building con=
struction, water and forage for stock, food in the form of game, and water-|
although often sour- for man to drink. Situated above the river's imme-
diate flood plain, the terrace afforded a generally dry, level site for
the large supply depot. That sage-covered terrace contained the canton-
ment's main complex of structures and is historically the most significant
portion of the mile-wide military reservation that is proposed for nom-
ination to the National Register. The reservation was selected because it
is a convenient, inclusive boundary wherein future archeological research
may reveal material relative to the history and prehistory of the site.

Although no physical structures remain of the once expansive supply depot,
numerous, shallow depressions in the ground are evidence of their former
existence. Inspecting the site afoot one may lose count of the number

of depressions located within a few hundred square yards of sagebrush, but
it is known that over 40 major log structures were built at Cantonment
Reno during just the first period of construction. Storehouses, a hos-
pital, huts for officers and enlisted men, outbuildings, stables and
corrals were built of logs hewn from cottonwood trees that grow in a belt
along the bottomland of the Powder River.

Removal of structures and artifacts is a part of the history of Cantonment
Reno. Scattered widely throughout the site are fragments of metal, wood
and glass, mere reminders of what once could be found at the depot. An
instance of wholesale removal of artifacts from this historic site occurred
as late as 1962; however that was about a decade prior to the time when
historic sites were seriously considered as an important part of the
planning conducted by some government agencies. Historic sites such as
Cantonment Reno have received lately more attention, especially where

they have become included within environmental impact studies that precede
industrial or other development projects. Nevertheless, since no plan of
the post has survived, haphazard excavations by anonymous persons has
caused disruption of the site, making a full archeological reconnaissance
of it more difficult in the future.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In the 1870's the United States Army took the offensive against certain
tribes of High Plains Indians. White civilization was expanding into
Indian land and pressure was being put upon the army ta.protect the white
man from such tribes as the Sioux, Cheyenne and Arapaho, The tempo of
white encroachment upon Indian country was stepped up by the rumor that
gold was found in the Black Hills. Rumor became fact when the presence
of gold was verified by two government expeditions to the Black Hills-
one in 1874 led by Lieutenant Colonel George Custer and another led by
Professor Walter P. Jenney in 1875. The necessity to make safe for the
white man such areas as the Black Hills led to the organization of a
fighting force under Brigadier General George Crook, In the spring of
1876 Crook directed a three-pronged invasion of the Powder River country,
The expedition was not successful and Crook's own force was fought to a °
:standstill on the Rosebud. The most well-known battle of the campaign,
however, is Custer's defeat at the Little Big Horn.

In the autumn of 1876 army strategy changed and it became the particular
mission of General Crook to continue warfare by seeking out hostile
Indian bands, obstructing their freedom of movement and harrassing them
in their own homeland. By attacking the source of their provender the
army could make it impossible for Indians to live off the land, thus
forcing them into reservations. Such an offensive required large and
mobile forces. Keeping this in mind Crook assembled almost an entire
regiment under Colonel Ranald S. Mackenzie, adding to it a company of
Pawnee scouts, and Shoshone and Crow scouts and irregulars. Since wagon
transport and pack train did not wholly answer to the supply needs of
this mobile fighting force, the construction of a temporary supply camp,
or cantonment, was planned. It was established in the Powder River Basin,
and utilized the permanent North Platte River posts of Fort Laramie and
Fort Fetterman as points of resupply.

Cantonment Reno took its name from a Bozeman Trail fort which once lay
about three miles downstream, to the north, Fort Reno, abandoned by the
military and burned by Indians following the Fort Laramie Treaty of
1868, was a stockaded post named for Major Jesse L. Reno who was killed
in the Civil War at the Battle of South Mountain on September 14,1862,
On October 14,1876, a decade following the construction of Fort Reno,
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Cantonment Reno was established by Captain Edwin Pollock of the Ninth In-
fantry. Pollock was following orders to select a site on the Powder River

in the vicinity of the former Fort Reno. From their tent camp Pollock's

men began construction of the post near the Dry Fork, using cottonwood logs
taken from a belt of trees along the river's bottomland. 1In his book
Military Posts in the Powder River Country of Wyoming, 1865-1894, Robert
Murray describes specific camp buildings and also the chronology of their
construction, which is as follows: a storehouse, two storage cellars, 19
barrack-huts for enlisted men along with four mess room-kitchens, a hospital,
9 officers' huts, four company orderly -huts, two double-huts containing
offices for commanding officer, quartermaster, and commissary of subsistence,
a shed and corral, teamster's hut, guardhouse, blacksmith shop, and bakery.

A commissary quarters and various sinks complete the list of structures

built at Cantonment Reno in late 1876. The new post was not luxurious but
more comfortable than the tents and dugouts._the men inhabited previously.

In November,1876 Captain John Bourke of the Third Cavalry described the
rudimentary cantonment as he saw it enroute to the Red Fork or Dull Knife
fight west of present-day Kaycee, Wyoming.

Cantonment Reno was not, at that time, suggestive of luxury or com-
fort. Officers and men were living in holes excavated in the faces
of clay banks or in makeshift quarters of a similar type. It had
been established for the protection of supplies to be issued to ex-
peditions like our own and answered its purpose well enough. The
officers and soldiers of the garrison were taking things philosop-
ically and there was no growling or complaint of any kind; still
orders to report for duty at West Point, Fort Monroe or Washington
would probably have been received with gladness and promptly obeyed
by most of them. More unaffected hospitality could not have been
found anywhere in the world.

Perhaps Christmas was made more enjoyable for the men by the arrival from
Fort Fetterman of window, doors and hardware to fit their log and earth
structures. Secure in their quarters they spent a quiet winter, although
activity at Cantonment Reno did not stop. Captain Pollock was told that

a bridge across the Powder was necessary because high water in the spring
would make the river impassable. A post trader was thus authorized to
construct a bridge, one which was washed out during the first period of
high water. By April 6 the post's civilian master mechanic had completed
a sturdier military bridge that remained in use for at least the existence
of the post, possibly longer.

Cantonment Reno played a role in the army's winter campaign of 1876-1877,
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the high point of which was the defeat of a Cheyenne band under chiefs Dull
Knife and Little Wolf on the headwaters of the Powder River in the Big Horn
Mountains. In the spring of 1877 the Fifth Cavalry Regiment took the field
in northern and central Wyoming to again engage the Indians. Part of the
regiment operated in the vicinity of Cantonment Reno, drawing supplies from
the post. One particular force under Captain J.M. Hammond set wup a tent
camp on the Clear Fork of the Powder River near present-day Buffalo, Wyoming
and called it Camp McKinney in honor of Lieutenant John McKinney, killed in
the Dull Knife Battle. The name Hammond gave to his camp has caused hist-
orical confusion involving Cantonment Reno and a later post, Fort McKinney,
because the name Cantonment Reno was changed to ''Cantonment or Camp McKinney!
Captain Pollock requested that change to end the confusion in mail deliveries
that existed because of the similarity between the name of his post and that
of the older Fort Reno. On August 30,1877 the War Department officially
designated his post on the Powder River "Fort McKinney."

In the fall of 1877 a new period of construction was begun at the cantonment
with the arrival of three companies of the Fifth Cavalry from the campaign
field. ©New buildings completed by early December,1877 were: three barracks,
three mess rooms, three large cavalry stables, one quartermaster's stable,
an. additional office, a new guard house, a corn building, and a carpenter's
shop. Erection of a pine flagstaff on February 1, 1878 completed the con-
struction of Cantonment Reno or Fort McKinney. At peak strength the post
contained 358 men, a large garrison by Wyoming military post standards.
Becauseof the aggressive warfare against High Plains Indians the post was
left open; no stockade ever surrounded the cantonment like that at Fort

Phil Kearny and Fort Reno a decade previous.

The ultimate dissatisfaction of Pollock and his troops with their earth-
roofed huts caused the captain to request from his superiors a sawmill, along
with permission to look for a good source of timber. This led to eventual
abandonment of the post and establishment of what is today known as Fort
McKinney, located on the Clear Fork. By July 15, 1878 most of Pollock's

men had left the Powder River for the site of the new post. Meanwhile
Cantonment Reno or Fort McKinney was given another designation, '"Depot
McKinney " as the new post was named Fort McKinney. Except for a small
detail which remained to take care of the depot and repair the telegraph

line from there, the army had vacated the Powder River post by the end of
1878. Doors, window sashes, and hardware were stripped from the cantonment
to supply the new post on Clear Fork, leaving the hulls of post buildings.

On December 10, 1878 Major Verling K. Hart, commander at the new Fort Mc-
Kinney, recommended that a section of land at the old post be retained as

a campground, which was accomplished. That entire section of land, described
on the accompanying map, is the area proposed for National Register status.
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The cantonment's post trader, E.U. Snider, moved with the army to the new
site. On May 13, 1879 authorization was providéd to allow his old store and
one of the cantonment cavalry stables on Powder River to be used as a store
and eating:house. It may have been Moreton Frewen, the English gentleman who
was an early settler in the Powder River Basin and owner of the 76 Ranch on
the Middle Fork, who began that roadhouse enterprise. Late in 1879 the
caretaker detail was withdrawn, and the army's last tie with their Powder
River post was the telegraph operation. 1In 1880 permission was granted the
Rock Creek Stage Company to remove another log cavalry stables from the
cantonment to a point east of the Powder River along the Dry Fork.

Although some squatters inhabited post buildings after 1880 a larger pop-
ulation gathered on the east side of the river at a settlement which became
known as Powder River Crossing. According to Mrs. J.E. Chappell a good
sized civilian community of about 100 people lived there or on the grounds
of the post following the departure of the military. That community declined
in importance as railroads reached the northern and southern ends of the
Powder River Basin. Today the area in which the military reservation 1is
located is used as part of a ranching operation.

The role of Cantonment Reno in the history of the West is limited mainly
to the period 1876-1878, although life at the post did not cease to exist
in the latter year. Civilian occupation at this significant crossing on
the Bozeman Trail continued until the 1890's, and the general area today
still contains a scattered population. The role of the cantonment in army
campaigns against High Plains Indians, however transitory, gives it at
least a regional significance which, translated to proper National Register
form, becomes one of state significance. It is associated with a long and
bitter struggle for the resources of a region, fought between members of
different cultures. As a key site in the development of that struggle it
deserves National Register status.

The location of the post, away from population centers, is one reason for
lack of interpretive development. Yet there is growing interest in history
as a form of recreation and the remoteness of a site may be somewhat of an
attraction to some who care to veer from beaten paths of travel. Cantonment
Reno, approaching in 1976 the centennial celebration of its establishment,
could well fit into an interpretive plan treating the history of the Bozeman
Trail and the Powder River Basin. An archeological survey of the site might
contribute to a further understanding of the construction of western can-
tonments, as well as preclude further haphazard excavation, something that
has occurred at the site over the years.
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10 Geographical Data Cantonment Reno Nomination

Acreage of Nominated Property 640 acres

UTM REFERENCES

A |13 [319,9/950 [48/49[370
ZONE EASTING NORTHING

B |n3 399920 |aslazlzenl
ZONE EASTING NORTHING

c lu3 |slos 320 laslazlz2ol
ZONE EASTING NORTHING

p |13 |3loslaaol |a.8laolsaol
ZONE EASTING NORTHING

The Cantonment Reno site is one square mile in size. Its boundary
lines coincide with the historic boundary 1ines of the McKinney
Military Reservation, shown on the enclosed map.
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